
Williamsburg Township Board of Trustees Minutes 

November 25, 2024 
 

The Williamsburg Township Board of Trustees met on Monday, November 25, 2024 to transact business.  Mr. Jordan called 

the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m., and all joined in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.  Gary Jordan, Guy Bainum and Bari 

Henning answered the roll call.  Also present were Fiscal Officer Doug Lefferson, Maintenance Supervisor/Zoning 

Administrator Brian Tatman, Emergency Services Chief Jason McCarthy, Jody Wilson, Dylan Arnett, and Ed Boll, Jr. 

  

Mr. Henning motioned to approve the minutes of the November 11, 2024 Public Hearing for Zoning Commission Case 

ZC#1-24.  Mr. Bainum second.  All yeas.  Mr. Bainum motioned to approve the minutes of the November 11, 2024 regular 

meeting.  Mr. Henning second.  All yeas,   Mr. Jordan motioned to approve the minutes of the November 13, 2024 special 

meeting.  Mr. Bainum second.  All yeas, 

 

Mr. Lefferson informed the Trustees that he had completed a credit application with Wiseway Supply.  This was to allow for 

the future purchase of building supplies for Phase 2 of the Maintenance Building.  Wiseway owns the former Hamersville 

Electric.  Mr. Lefferson also informed the Trustees that an account has been established at Wichard Oil LLC, Bethel, Ohio 

for the delivery of gasoline and diesel fuel to the Emergency Services Building tanks.  He indicated that quick action was 

needed due to our current supplier World Fuel Services (Lykins) providing short notice that they would no longer provide 

this service to the Township.  The Township was informed this was a business decision that apparently also impacted the 

Village of Williamsburg and other local Townships.  Williamsburg Township is grateful for Wichard Oil’s quick response 

and professionalism to provide no lapse in fuel delivery. 

 

Mr. Lefferson presented a financial report, including a comprehensive account of expenditures and receipts, an appropriation 

status report indicating year-to-date expenditures by account, and a revenue status report comparing budgeted revenue to 

actual received, and the Trustees accepted it.   

 

Mr. Bainum motioned to approve the attached bills.  Mr. Henning second.  All yeas. 

 

Corporal Adam Bailey of the Clermont County Sheriff’s Office gave a report on activity in the Township.  His review of 

October activity included one felony criminal investigation, one felony vandalism, two domestic violence investigations, 

other trespass and misdemeanors, and two mental health concerns forwarded to the appropriate agencies.  Corporal Bailey 

said there were seven noncriminal investigations that needed more information documented.  He also reported there were 28 

other calls for service such as neighbor complaints and incident reports that were not criminal in nature.  This was 

information he had not really reported on in prior months.  Corporal Bailey indicated that during fall and winter issues slow 

down a little bit.  The Trustees stated they appreciated the report and Corporal Bailey’s service. 

 

Cemetery and Maintenance Report 

Mr. Tatman provided a report.  He stated he had a quote from Fastech for key fob entry systems into the new building, fire 

alarm, and burglar alarm for $16,210.86.  This includes motion detecting on all doors including the garage doors.  Mr. 

Tatman said if we add cameras, it is another $10,000 or we can buy cameras.  He said if we buy and install our own cameras, 

a 6-camera system from Best Buy is $699.99 plus extra cables of $139.96, for a total of $839.95.  Mr. Tatman said he also 

had another quote for cameras from CCTV which is online, out of New Jersey for $1,873.08 for a 6-camera system.  The 

CCTV cameras are NDAA compliant, referring to businesses implementing specific security measures to protect their 

information systems.  NDAA compliant cameras are not manufactured by Chinese Manufacturers.  Mr. Jordan asked Mr. 

Tatman which cameras he recommended.  Mr. Tatman said he recommends the Best Buy option because we are familiar with 

these cameras, and they have worked for the Township in the past.  Mr. Bainum motioned to purchase a key fob entry 

system, fire alarms, and burglar alarms for the new maintenance building from Fastech Alarms & Telecommunication 

Services Cincinnati, Ohio for $16,210.86 and a 6-camera system from Best Buy for $839.95, for a total of $17,050.81.  Mr. 

Henning second.  All yeas.  Mr. Tatman provided an update on Phase 2 of the Maintenance Building indicating all HVAC 

duct work has been completed and the furnace has been installed.  He stated the plumbing and electrical will be next along 

with running the gas line from the original shop back to the new building.  Internet and phone lines for the building will 

hopefully be run over the next couple of weeks.  Insulation, drywall, and painting will follow next.  Mr. Tatman said he has 

met with Duke Energy on the new building.  Regarding the cemetery, Mr. Tatman said all footers have been installed and that 

is the last of them for this year.  He stated leaf cleanup in the cemetery was finished today.  Mr. Tatman said all the salt 

equipment will be checked out over the next couple of weeks.  Mr. Jordan discussed the stop signs on Musgrove Road, 

stating the other direction had double stop signs.  Mr. Tatman indicated that after Duke work is complete it may be better, 

and the stop sign can be moved.  Mr. Jordan said consider another stop sign.  Mr. Tatman said he would talk to the property 

owner about the placement of another stop sign.    

 

 



Williamsburg Township Board of Trustees Minutes 

November 25, 2024 
Zoning Report 

Mr. Tatman provided a report.  He indicated there was one steel barn permit issued this past week.  Mr. Tatman reported that 

he spoke to the owner of the camper that has been parked in the Township Hall parking lot and the owner indicated she was 

waiting on parts, and it will be fixed and moved off the property this week.  The owner said she removed the license plate so 

it would not be stolen. Mr. Tatman informed her it needed a license plate.  Mr. Tatman asked given the new alternative 

energy section in the zoning resolution book, should the Township print out all new books or just print out the new section 

then send it to all zoning commission/board members.  Mr. Tatman recommended printing all new books out, that way 

everyone has the same one for sure.  He mentioned that two old sections were also being removed, so page numbers and 

everything will not match with the new one.  Mr. Henning agreed new zoning resolution books should be printed.  Mr. 

Tatman said he would check on pricing to print.  Mr. Bainum asked about how any upcoming changes would impact the 

book.  Mr. Tatman indicated he thought he could fit future changes in the book.  Mr. Jordan brought up the vendors at the SR 

32 intersections at McKeever Road and Dela Palma Road, indicating he had a concern for safety.  It was mentioned that you 

see no other vendors at other intersections of SR 32.  There was also discussion about zoning regulations requiring any 

produce sold at stands be 50% sourced locally.  Mr. Jordan said these SR 32 stands are a distraction and he is concerned 

about accidents.  He indicated there is a farmers’ market in the Village of Williamsburg that is better suited for vendors.  Mr. 

Jordan suggested Mr. Tatman talk to legal counsel, saying this was something to think about.  Mr. Tatman said he would talk 

to the Clermont County Assistant Prosecutor.  Mr. Jordan asked if there were any updates on high grass or any results.  Mr. 

Tatman responded no.  Mr. Bainum said he spoke with the American Legion about flag poles.  The American Legion needs 

to replace the flagpole at their building due to road/sidewalk construction and they are interested in replacing the poles at all 

three cemeteries at the same time.  

 

Emergency Services Report 

Chief McCarthy provided a report.  Brush 273 is out of service due to an antifreeze leak and flat tire. The Chief said they 

were looking into repair costs.  Chief McCarthy reported there was annual airway and CPR protocol training with Dr. 

Charlton.  The Chief informed the Trustees that Makenna Weaver submitted her resignation, and he recommended accepting 

it.  Mr. Henning asked if Ms. Weaver was part-time.  Chief McCarthy said yes, and she had taken a full-time position 

elsewhere a year ago.  Mr. Henning motioned to accept the resignation of Makenna Weaver, Firefighter/Paramedic.  Mr. 

Bainum second.  All yeas.  Mr. Jordan asked for an update on the life squad that had been ordered.  Chief McCarthy said we 

have the drawings back, production should begin in April or May, and he is assuming it will be in service in December 2025.  

Mr. Jordan asked the Chief to think about the Department’s next need and lead time.  Mr. Henning asked about a 

mailbox/dropbox by the fuel tanks at the Emergency Services Building for fuel receipts.  The Chief said he and Mr. Tatman 

were working on it. 

 

Public Participation 

Mr. Jordan opened the meeting up for public participation, reminding the group of the 5-minute time limit for individual 

speakers.  A question about the vendors at SR 32 and McKeever Road and SR 32 and Dela Palma Road and the State of Ohio 

right of way was asked.  Mr. Henning said it is the State of Ohio right of way and we need to check with legal counsel on 

how to proceed. He indicated there has been permission for produce in the past.  Mr. Bainum said the foul language flags for 

sale in some cases, with school buses utilizing those roadways raised the Trustees awareness.  Mr. Boll asked who will 

enforce any rules on these vendors.  Mr. Jordan said it was a safety issue and enforcement needs to be consistent.  He said as 

to who enforces, he suggests it is a violation of zoning and steps would be taken with the prosecuting attorney and Sheriff.  

Mr. Tatman indicated yes, we have road side stand rules and 50% of any produce sold must be produced by the vendor.  Mr. 

Tatman said we can enforce anywhere in the Township.  Mr. Boll asked if the Township has the authority to enforce.  Mr. 

Henning said this issue came up for safety reasons and we will check into it and see if we can stop the vendor activity.  Mr. 

Arnett asked if the Ohio State Patrol can enforce.  Mr. Henning said we need to check.  Mr. Jordan stated we are trying to 

figure out how to get it done right.  Mr. Jordan said we just want to figure it out with legal counsel.  Mr. Bainum said he has 

never seen vendors at any other corners on SR 32.  Mr. Boll asked how long this has been going on.  The Trustees and Mr. 

Tatman said a long time.  Ms. Wilson asked if the zoning book will be online.  Mr. Tatman said once the new book is printed 

it will be uploaded to the Township website.   

 

There being no further business, Mr. Bainum motioned to adjourn at approximately 7:38 p.m.  Mr. Henning second.  All 

yeas. 

 

 

 

 

 



Williamsburg Township Board of Trustees Minutes 

November 25, 2024 
 

___________________________________  ___________________________________ 

Fiscal Officer     Chairperson    


